
































































































































































































































\OoL)

Dundas Public School is the largest such institute participating.

Other centres of importance are the Armouries on King Street and
Market Strect, the home of the Dundas Reserve Regiment and the Sea Cadets,
the Post Office on King and McMurray Streets, and the Fire Department at

Memorial Square.

Recreational Facilities

Dundas Driving Park is one of the town's most used institutions,
yet it dates only from 1877(Figure 15 ). Now however, it provides
facilities for at least one hundred picnic reservations a year. Within
the park is an area reserved for the entertainment of young children,

a baseball diamond surrounded by bleachers for organized baseball, and
open grassy fields for football.

Webster's Falls Park, the gift of W. Knowles, provides excellent
and ample facilities to citizens and visitors alike. Although outside
of the town limits Webster's Park, located on Spencer Creek above Webster's
Falls, has been converted into an attractive and popular recreation spot.
Well-kept landscaping adds greatly to the natural beauty of the park.

On Creighton Road between Spencer Creek and Market Street is the
area encompassing the Dundas arena and the Lion's Club swimming pool.

The arena is a comparatively new institution in Dundas, being finished

in 1950, The arena was constructed by the town with funds raised by
pﬁblic subscriptions and is operated in the interests of all the citizens.
A variety of activities are carried on. Next to the arena is the
swimming pool, sponsored by the Lion's Club, and open to all citizens

of Dundas and peoples from the surrounding districts. Memberships

may be obtained for the whole family at little cost.

The Dundas Golf and Country Club, although outside the town limits,
can, for practical purposes, be considered as arecreational factor in
the life of many Dundas citizens. As it is a privafe course it attracts
many members from Hamilton also. The hilly moraines on which it is
located provide excellent facilities for golfing.

The Desjardins Canal offers many attractions to sports lovers.
Boating and canoeing on the canal are favourite summer pastimes, while
in winter the canal attracts hundreds of skaters from Dundas, Hamilton
and the surrounding areas. Most of the marsh area is owned by the Royal
Botanical Gardens and is kept by them as a wild life reserve. A movement

is under way to restore the canal to its former beauty and to further

encourage its use for recreational mprposeg through dredging and




ocaly for

Deajardine Canal uced now

tpomthn_ﬂ puryoses

R L

T —
a3k i ST o
ot g P R i A . ik |

.,

A favourite epot for ohild

Dundas Driving Park

- -
"N imee
~ iy - b
o < s
—— - _— e —
B e i~ OB nm - . -
B e P S
e TR AT A A i BT W, 4
x ~
“ S 5
. . e )
X s
- -
. .
-
- - - p -
L, - -
o . « 2T
iz . ‘ /
l/. v 5 3 & .
. . - - -
. “u
o . 2 - b
- - .
> ’ ;.
'
A~y .
L 4 S 2
x :
-
.



NF——p

cleaning out operstions. Dundas, as the owner of the canal for a width
of two chains on either side through the marsh to the High Level Bridge
is especially concerned with the project.

In adcition to these recreational facilities Dundas also has a
music hall open for dancing and a theatre. The new Legion Hall is also

used by many as a place for social gatherings.

Dundas Schools

Most Dundas schoﬁls were privately owned in 1847, but the town has
operated a Public School since 1840 and a High School since 1857. In
1953 another public échool was constructed. In addition the Roman Catholic
Church operates a separate school.

The present high school (Figure 15) was erected on the site of an
old paper-mill, whose original buildings were torn down in 1929. In 1952
the student enrolment was 311, and in 1953 it was 326 with 108 pupils
in 1952 and 105 pupils in 1953 coming from outside the town. In 1953
West Flamborough sent 67 students; Ancaster township 19; Beverly township
19. Although three students from East Flamborough were registered in
1952 there were none in 1953, all Fast Flamborough high school students
attending Waterdown High School.l In general it may be said that Rockton,
Troy, and Westover in Beverly Township, and the Copetown-Ancaster strip
in Ancaster Township, and all of West Flamborough area are included in
the Dundas District High School area.

At present the school is comfortably filled, but with an average
increase of 6.4% in enrolment per year it is evident that within the
next ten years the existing building must be enlarged or another one
built. There is another problem also. Of the total number of students
‘enrolled, 30% live outside Dundas, yet the school is controlled by the
town of Dundas which "sells" education on a "oer dien" basis. These
pupils have paid nothing toward the capital cost of the school accomodation
and yet, they by their presence are'responsible for the exclusion of
Dundas school pupils, whose parents have paid for the accomodation,
from certain school activities. For instance, Grade seven pupils are
excluded from Home Economic and Shop Courses because there is insufficient
space at the high school where this instruction is given. These problems
could be solved in three different ways; either by the actual enlarging

of the school facilities through the addition of several rooms or the

construction of another school; the participation of the whole area
concerned in the school project rather than just Dundas: or. if there

1. These figures were obtained from the principal of the High School
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are too many pupils, the restriction of enrolment to Dundas only. This
latter poses the problem of what tc do with the county pupils excluded.

Until February of 1954, Dundas had only one public school, that on
Melville Street at Albert Street. At this time, however, a new public
school was opened on the House of Refuge property south of South Street.
As information concerning the operation of this last school was not
available at the time of the writing of this r eport, conditions described
will be those existing at the old school. Both schools are under the
direction of the Dundas Township School Area Board.

The formation of the Dundas Township Sghool Area became almost a
necessity when the city of Hamilton annexed a large parcel of land to
the east of Dundas which included the Binkley school. The area not
annexed had some one hundred pupils in it with no school of their own.
Therefore the school area was set up taking in quite a bit of territory
adjacent to the town boundaries and where in most cases Dundas was the most
convenient place to attend school. The municipalities concerned
in this project are the town of Dundas, Ancaster Township, and the
Township of West Flamborough. In general the area extends on the east
to the boundary of the city of Hamilton to the mountain brow where it
intersects the #2 highway. This includes lots 51 and 52 in Ancaster and
SS 4 of Ancaster Township. On the north Hopkins Creek and the C.N,R.right
of way determine the limits, while on the west it extends along a line
(lot 10) which cuts through the property of the Dundas Golf Club and meets
the Governor's Road. The south boundary is roughly the T.H.& B. right of
way, although about midway along the boundary it dips deeply to the south
and takes in a triangular piece of territory extending to the front of
the mountain. Public school expenditures are paid for by public school
supporters of the whole area, on the basis of what is agreed upon by the
municipality involved. This equalized assessment operates on a percentage
agreement Dundas being responsible for 85%, West Flamborough Township
for ,6% and Ancaster Township for 9% 1

Although the number varies slightly from month to month there are
approximately 1225 pupils en;olled at the school, (Figures for December
1953). Of the total enrolment approximately 1000 came from the town of
Dundas proper. Due to the influx of population and to the situation with
regard to the Binkley pupils, adequate accomodation for the pupils was
lacking. The school was forced to make use of rooms in four of the
churches as well as renting two rooms from the Separate School Board.

Also areas within the main building which in normal times would not be

used for regular rooms, such as the basement and smaller rooms, had to
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be utilized. To remedy this situation the Board planned to build two
schools, one in the east end of the area and ine in the north. The first
of these is the one on South Street, a six-roomed school which was
occupied in February 1954. The second school with nine rooms is to be
erected in the Hillfield Acres survey in the northern part of the town
Jjust off York Road at Cameron Avenue. Although the new school will be

a benefit, it will still leave pupils in temporary accommodation, and this
condition will exist until the second school is opened in September 1954,
it is expected. Recommendations have also been forwarded that sites in
Cameron Heights and University Gardens Surveys be considered as likely
spots for future schools. It is hoped that changes will be later
provided for Home Economics and Manual Training within the public school
system, rather than sending public school pupils to the high school for
these subjects.

Dundas has one separate school, St. Augustine's, situated on Alma
Street at Sydenham Street. The enrolment is 337 with 327 from Dundas
proper and the other ten from Freelton, Copetown and Greensville. At
present, facilities are quite adequate for the number of pupils.

Four new rooms were built in 1953, and two were rented to the public
school. However, each room has over forty pupils. The big problem is
more a financial one than one of accommodation as the school is in quite
deep debt.

There is every indication that the school age population in the
Dundas area will increase in the next few years. The schools are
receiving now, the natural increase in young children following the war
period aqd with the large number of homes completed in the new surveys
in the north and eastern parts of the area there will probably be a

continuation of the present trend for some time uriless economic conditions

‘change drastically.

Water and Sewage Facilities

Throughout its existence as a town, Dundas has been bothered about
water supply, first for fire fighting, then for drinking, and finally
for sanitary purposes. In 1882, as a result of a large fire, water-works
were established, but only for fire fighting. Drinking water was later
obtained, but the creek went dry. Wells were dug, springs were tapped,
creek water was used, but a few years ago every source failed and Hamilton
water mains were extended to Dundas in the emergency. Since then, other

precautionary measures have been undertaken.
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The water supply for the town of Dundas comes from Spencer Creek
into a dam just west of Greensville in Concession 2, occupying several
acres in the little valley known as Crook's Hollow. It has a present
capacity large enough to supply the household needs of some ten thousand
people. At the present time, another dam is being constructed which, when
. completed, will double the existing capacity. This greater storage is
especially necessary in July when the water doesn't run over the present
dam. The second dam is being built to a height of 25 feet, some 300 yards
down-stream from the present dam, on a natural site where a mass of springs
adds greatly to the water supply. The reservoir behind the dam will have
an estimated capacity of 40 million gallons, enough for 20,000 people.1
Danger from spring flooding could be alleviated by the second dam which
could be lowered during the winter and allowed ro fill up during the
spring. The water from these dams is treated at a modern filtration
plant, before being dispatched to the homes in Dundas. An awerage of
800,000 gallons per day is consumed in Dundas. £
As well as lacking water at times, Dundas also has the opposite
proolem of overabundance at other times. Every spring, the heavy melting
of snow swells the waters of Spencer and sydenham Creeks resulting in
flooding of certain areas especially in the eastern section of the town.
The Sydenham flowing down from the escarpment to the north is subject to
sudden flash floods with rapid rise and fall of water level. Part
of this is due to the denudation of forest lands above the escarpment
and probably will not be corrected until some sort of reforestation
programme is initiated. Dundas Street east, Baldwin, Court and Thorpe
Streets suffer most from flooding of Spencer Creek as ice jams force the
waters to back up into streets and cellars. At times this section of
the highway #/102 to Hamilton is covered with flood waters. Part of the
difficulty is due to ice jams which blocking the regular course of the
stream force the waters up and over the bank; part is due to the widening
of the stream just south of Dundas Street, an action which slows down
the flow of water in the stream and reduces its ability to carry large
pieces of ice away along its course; and part is due to the deforesting
of sections of Beverly Township where thousands of acres drain into Spencer
Creek. Retaining walls are constructed along the banks of both streams
but in severe rain, storms or sudden meltings, these are not adequate.
Dundas has a complete sewage system including one of the most modern
disposal plants in the country. It is designed at present to handle
sewage disposal of a town of over 10,000 and with the expenditure of about
$50,000, can be doubled in capacity.:3 This plant is designed after the

one in Buffalo. After the removal of solids and the treatment of raw
sewage, nothing but clear filtered water trickles into the Dundas Canal,

1. The Dundas Star , Dundas November 19, 1952

2. From the Dundas Public Utilities Commission

. Dundas Ausust 5, 1953

T™ha ™indas Star
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Storm sewers do not enter into the marsh and no garbage is dumped there.
If the sanitary fill area to the east of the town is to be sprayed for
mosquitoes Dundas autﬁorities have shown their willingness to co-operate
with Hamilton and to contribure towards the project. The disposal plant
can be seen at the castern edge of the town north of King Street across
from the old turning basin of the Desjardins Canal. Kast of this Jjust
outside the town limits is the section utilized for the dumping of the
town's garbage.

Water and sewer service has been extended to all areas within the
town boundaries except that low-lying land between West and East Streets
and between Dundas Street and the foot of the escarpment. This area is
subject to flooding and its inhabitants are few. The cost per capita
would be too high to warrant the extension of such facilities to this
area. In addition, once established it would involve great expense to
maintain these services. Other area outside the town are served also,
including the Highland Hills survey. According to the town clerk, however,

no further outside areas will receive these services for a while anyway,
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CHAPTER IX

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Dundas' position in the Dundas Valley restricted on the east by the
Dundas lMarsh, on the west by the morainic hills, on the north and south
by escarpment while preventing more than a limited amount of expan-
sion has given it a distinct character and individuality distinguishing
it from surrounding towns and cities.

Dundas was originally ideal for industrial development as long as
industry and trade were dependent on water power and water transportation.
However, with the coming of larger ships, railways and steam power the
commercial superiority of Dundas over Hamilton was destroyed. Dundas
wasn't able to fully utilize the advantages of Dundas Valley, the chief
entrance into the interior of southern Ontario at the head of the lake,
for extensive industrial development because it lacked sufficient room
for expaﬁsion. Hamilton had the advantage of at least six miles of
sheltered waterfront on a level plain for industrial growth.

Dundas did not lose its industrial function and in this respect may
be said to be independent of Hamilton. Many of its products go to
Hamilton manufacturers for further processing while many of its raw
materials come from Hamilton. On third of its labour force finds
employment in Hamilton but 28/9% of those employed in industry in Dundas
come from Hamilton. The textile tradition in Hamilton has actually
grown out of the still older tradition of Dundas noted for its woollens
even in the early 1830's. Similarly the quality of Dundas tools and
machinery and its tradition of workmanship in both textiles and foundry
work have been of inestimable value to industry to-day. Thus these two
activities along with woodworking form'éhe backbone of Dundas'
industrial life at the present time.,/ These are the "historically
proven'" industries.

Unlike many towns of this size its industry caters not merely to

local needs but also to national and to a more limited extent to inter=-

national markets. Thus Dundas still retains the industrial reputation
it won for itself in the historical past, a reputation it is doing its
best to extend into the future.

Duncas' future industrial growth will probably be along the line

of greater diversity in order to alleviate the pressure exerted on the
economy by dependence on one or two main industries. Most of these will



be small and of the non-nuisance type. Although there is still some

land suitable for industrial expansion it is not extensive. After

this is taken up it may be necessary to redistribute some of the features
of the present town plan. Certain D type housing areas probably could
be replaced by industrial enterprises. However, with the policy of
careful and discriminating selection that is now being encouraged it is
not likely that the immediate future will see any great clamour for

more industrial territory.

Increasing in importance is the residential function. As has been
seen this is a comparatively new function but one that has attained
great prominence. This is especially evident since the war years when
the greater purchasing power of many industrial workers and the scarcity
of homes enabled many to look farther afield for lots on which to
construct their homes. As the tempo of city life increases and the
desire for quiet and pleasant surroundings in which to relax becomes
stronger there will be more and more workers as well as wealthier folk
seeking homes in the suburban areas of Hamilton. Because: of the
proximity to Hamilton and the excellent highway and bus facilities
linking town and city, Dundas will probably receive a large share of
this migration in the future. With this influx will come even more
serious problems of social and economic adjustment. Schools will
suffer from congestion whilethe demand for better road surfacing will
certainly increase. Dundas is ready for most of these problems. One
new school has already been completed, another is planned for 1954 and
still others are being considered for construction in the near future.
It has adequate water supply for avpopulation almost three times its
present size and sewage facilities for a town of at least ten thousand
and capable of being expanded to serve twice as many. Road surfacing
has been started with the paving of King Street. In the recreational
field the new arena should allow for the same and an even greater
variety of activity than it now undertakes. With the arena and
facilities in the Dundas Driving Park there should be adequate provision
for organized sport in the next few years. Plans for the future call
for a museum to be built to hold the relics of Dundas' historj and to be
second only to the Royal Ontario Museum in Toronto. Both the high
school and the library it appears have or are in the process of out-
growing their present premises. In the case of the school there is
room for expansion. In the case of the library it appears as if this
would involve movement to more spacious quarters,

Dundas' commercial function is stiil important though of less

significance as rural areas turn more and more to the large cities of




Hamilton, Brantford, Guelph and Paris and as its own citizens look more
to Hamilton for greater variety of merchandise. In this connection
Dundas will have to establish greater co-ordination between its new
and old areas if it is to obtain any sort of control over commercial
wants of its citizens. Those in the west end of the town will
naturally gravitate to the center of town, proximity to many of the
stores prompting greater purchases in Dundas itself. However in the
east end, residents answering the greater pull to the cast will be more
inclined to go to Hamilton. Cameron Heights, York Heights, Hillfield
Acres and University Gardens are in the extreme north-east and south-
east sections of the town and rather isolated from the rest of the
town. They are more like branches on a tree rather than a part of the
main trunk. In University Gardens lots have been set aside for
commercial ventures whereas the other surveys are purely residential.

With the rapid building up of the eastern half of the town the
city hall for long on the eastern outskirts of the town has regained
its geographically central position. It remains to be seen whether or
not this is only nominally true or whether it is actually the centre of
town life.

Through the years, Dundas has established and maintained its own
unique character partly due to its long-established and independent
industrial traditions that set it apart from its larger and more
prosperous neighbour to the east. The physical barriers that prevent
its expansion also prevent its absorption into the larger urban centre

of Hamilton. In this respect, it is and probably will always be

- independent of Hamilton. Industrially, Dundas is independent of Hamilton

and a rival of Hamilton; commercially, Hamilton is a great and almost
overpowering rival of Dundas, but Dundas is complementary to Hamilton. It
is mj'opinion that in the future, it is this complementary phase of
Dundas-Hamilton relations that will flourish and become increasingly

significant.
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